
 

 

State Board of Emergency Medical, Fire, and Transportation Services 
Dudley H.A. Wright II,, Chair 
Kent Appelhans, Vice-Chair 

Dr. Carol Cunningham, State Medical Director 
www.ems.ohio.gov/ems_board.stm 

1970 West Broad Street, PO Box 182073, Columbus, Ohio 43218                                                                     (614) 466-9447 / (614) 466-9461 FAX  

 
                 SCOPE OF PRACTICE AD HOC COMMITTEE 

 
STATE BOARD OF EMERGENCY MEDICAL, FIRE AND TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
August 22, 2019 

 
 
Committee Meeting Date and Location:  Thursday, August 22, 2019 at the ODPS Shipley 
Building, Conference Room 1102, 1970 W. Broad Street, Columbus, OH  43223 
 
Committee Members Present:  Kent Appelhans, Karen Beavers, Dr. Thomas Charlton, Geoff 
Dutton, Dr. Hamilton Schwartz, Mark Resanovich, Kevin Uhl, and Rachel Velasquez 
 
Committee Members Absent:  Rob Martin and Dudley Wright 
 
DPS and EMS Staff Members Present:  Beverly Cooper, Melvin House, Novica Olinger, Ellen 
Owens, Kris Patalita, and Rob Wagoner 
 
Public Present: None 
 
 
Welcome and Introductions 
 
The meeting was brought to order at 10:45 a.m. Kevin Uhl welcomed the group. Quorum was 
attained.  
 
Opening Remarks 
 
Mr. Uhl briefly discussed the amount of work to be done with this committee and the homework 
that had been assigned.  
 
Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Mr. Uhl requested a motion to approve the minutes from the July meeting.  
 
ACTION: Motion to approve the meeting minutes from July 25, 2019.  Mr. Resanovich – First; Mr. 
Dutton – Second. None opposed. None abstained. Motion approved.  

 
Addition of New Members 
 
Mr. Uhl welcomed the new members, Dr. Thomas Charlton and Rachel Velasquez. He advised 
Rob Martin is a new member but was unable to attend today’s meeting. Novica Olinger was 
introduced as the new staff support person who will take over in September.  
 
Flowchart/Checklist 
 



Ohio Department of Public Safety August 22, 2019 
State Board of Emergency Medical, Fire, and Transportation Services Page 2 of 4 
Scope of Practice Ad Hoc  
 
Mr. Uhl asked Geoff Dutton to present information regarding the flowchart/checklist. Mr. Dutton 
mentioned what a change in scope of practice entails and the steps that need to be considered. 
Mr. Uhl asked if the checklist was complete and Mr. Dutton advised it was not. Deputy Director 
Rob Wagoner asked if Mr. Dutton had a draft copy, either digitally or hard copy. Mr. Dutton 
advised that he would go to his office and make copies. He briefly left the meeting.  
 
Dr. Hamilton Schwartz entered the meeting at 10:52 a.m. 
 
In the interim, Mr. Uhl began drawing a diagram of the process on the whiteboard. There was a 
lengthy discussion on the process for filing scope of practice rule changes and the timelines 
involved. Ellen Owens and Beverly Cooper explained, in more detail, what is involved with 
propagating rule changes and the ramifications of such changes. There was some clarification 
given regarding emergency changes versus routine changes. Ms. Cooper handed out a rule 
filing schedule and elaborated on the same. She also explained what CSI (Common Sense 
Initiative) and JCARR (Joint Committee on Agency Rules Review) are.  
 
Executive Director Melvin House left the meeting at 11:16 a.m. 
 
Ms. Cooper continued to explain the process for filing rule changes. She mentioned that it is 
important to make sure any stakeholders who may be impacted are involved and agree to the 
changes before filing with CSI or JCARR. There was a group discussion regarding the 
information presented. 
 
Mr. Dutton provided each member with a draft copy of the flowchart/checklist he had devised. 
He began by explaining how this checklist came to be. He advised that this is a rough draft only 
and does not incorporate all considerations. He asked if anyone had any ideas on items to add. 
Dr. Thomas Charlton asked if the committee could get the list of questions that JCARR and CSI 
ask so that they can be integrated into the checklist. Ms. Cooper advised that she would forward 
the forms to the support staff to be disseminated to this committee.  
 
ACTION ITEM:  Ms. Cooper will forward the forms that list the questions that 
JCARR and CSI ask to Kris Patalita. This form will be disseminated to the 
committee. 
 
Mr. Uhl asked if anyone had a copy of the rule or could point out where it states that items 
added to the scope of practice have to be taught. There was a lengthy discussion regarding 
different techniques that are currently being performed in the field and whether they are in the 
current scope of practice. There was further discussion regarding changing the wording of the 
rules in order to more easily amend the rules for changes in technology. Ms. Owens explained 
that there are five (5) such rules involved when considering what the schools have to teach. She 
then provided an example of just one of those rules and the associated considerations.  
 
There was additional group discussion regarding changes. Mr. Dutton asked if the five sections 
of the Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) could be provided to the group to go along with the 
checklist for discussion at the next meeting. There was a suggestion made to incorporate the 
rules as well and to possibly make a binder for each committee member. It was decided that it 
would be preferable to have the information in a digital format. Ms. Owens asked for some 
clarification regarding what particular areas of the scope of practice to incorporate. Ms. Owens 
advised that she started assembling a list of the administrative code sections that apply and are 
connected to the scope of practice. She stated she would send a list with a link to LAWriter® 
included. The committee members can then advise which ones, if any, they would like copies 
made. She then asked if the group also wanted the Ohio educational guidelines document, 
although it is currently outdated. Ms. Owens further stated that the guidelines document would 



Ohio Department of Public Safety August 22, 2019 
State Board of Emergency Medical, Fire, and Transportation Services Page 3 of 4 
Scope of Practice Ad Hoc  
 
need to be updated once the changes in scope are made. Mr. Uhl stated that Ms. Owens could 
determine if it needs to be included. She advised she would send it electronically.  
 
ACTION ITEM:  Ms. Owens will email a list of scope of practice related rules with 
a link to LAWriter® along with the document on Ohio education guidelines.  
 
Examples of Ask EMS Questions 
 
Ms. Owens advised that, unfortunately, there was not a good way to search the Ask EMS 
emails received because of the varying subjects queried. She provided some examples of what 
types of questions were submitted and added to the Medical Direction Q & A section on the 
EMS website.  
 
Items in Ohio’s Scope of Practice that are not in the National Education Guidelines 
 
Ms. Owens proceeded to discuss the various levels of EMS certifications in Ohio and how the 
scope of practice differs with the National Education Guidelines for each level. She mentioned 
that the greatest variance was with the advanced emergency medical technician (AEMT) level, 
including most of the drugs.  
 
Ms. Owens then left the meeting. Others in the room expressed their need to leave the meeting 
shortly. Mr. Uhl advised that he would like to forge on to get more accomplished. It was 
determined that he would no longer have a quorum to continue the meeting as most people had 
other commitments. There was a suggestion to increase the length of the next meeting in order 
to cover more topics. There was a consensus to increase the next meeting to two hours.  
 
ACTION ITEM:  The September meeting will be two hours instead of an hour and 
a half (10:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Uhl recapped the goals for the next meeting.  
 
Recap of Action Items/Goals 
 
A copy of the rules pertaining to scope of practice will be sent out to the group 
Develop additional items to consider for the checklist and bring to the next meeting 
Continue to review the Ohio scope of practice versus the national and be prepared to discuss 
additions, deletions, amendments at the next meeting, especially those that will affect advances 
in technology 
 
Open Forum 
 
Mr. Dutton advised that he made an inquiry to the Department of Public Safety Information 
Technology (IT) department regarding a Dropbox type of software that could be utilized by this 
committee in order to share documents more efficiently. He stated that there is a promising 
alternative of which he hopes to have more information by the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Uhl then asked for a motion to adjourn.  
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 



Ohio Department of Public Safety August 22, 2019 
State Board of Emergency Medical, Fire, and Transportation Services Page 4 of 4 
Scope of Practice Ad Hoc  
 
 
ACTION: Motion to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Resanovich – First; Mr. Dutton – Second. None 
opposed. None abstained. Motion approved.  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:02 p.m.  
 
Next meeting:   
 
September 26, 2019 at 10:30 a.m. in the ODPS conference room 1102. 
 
 
 


